Minutes for Town of Minnesott Beach
Board of Commissioners' Meeting
August 8, 2017

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday, 2017 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Josh Potter, Commissioner Tim Fowler, Commissioner
Carolyn Casey, Commissioner Eber Warren and Commissioner Cliff Braly.

Board members absent: none

Others present: Carolyn Braly, Town Manager, Adam Garfinkel and Val & Nick
Calcavecchia.

Mayor Potter welcomed everyone to the meeting, called the meeting to order at 7:00pm
with a moment of silence and lead everyone in the pledge of alliance to the flag.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the August 8, 2017 BOC agenda.
Commissioner Braly moved to approve the agenda as revised. All ayes.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to July 11, 2017 regular meeting
minutes. Commissioner Fowler moved to approve the July 11, 2017 minutes. All ayes.

Mayor Potter called for any discussion or revision to the Special BOC meeting held July
27,2017 regarding Arlington Place. Commissioner Fowler moved to approve the July 27,
2017 minutes. All ayes.

Public Comments: none

Town Manager’s report: 4 Permits were applied for and approved: Town Hall addition;
Lisa Watts at 40 Best Lane, room addition; Chris Laboda at 44 Peppervine Ct., shed
placement; and Ron Spadin, 16 Needle Ct., shed placement. Pamlico County finally
updated CAMA Land Use Plan Webpage for Minnesott Beach for the changes made in
2012.

Planning Board Report: Chairman Garfinkel congratulated Commissioner Braly &
Mrs. Braly on the birth of a grandson, Elliott Bailey Dale, July 27, 2017.

He reported the Planning Board met August 1, 2017 at 6:00pm for the sole purpose of
reviewing Mr. William Conklin’s application for a Zoning Amendment. The initial
application for a Zoning Permit was denied because it is a single-family lot. The
Planning Board reviewed the Zoning Amendment application, along with all of the
documentation, and under the authority of the UDO 151.268 (B) by a 4/0 vote that the
Zoning Amendment application ZA 6-17-1 seeking to amend the zoning classification
from single-family to multi-family for a lot located at 1054 Mill Creek Drive, Lot
62C, is inconsistent with the compressive plan adopted for Arlington Place and in
discord to officially adopted Town plans. Lot 62C Mill Creek, Phase I, is identified
on the Arlington Place Master Plan as single-family and was purchased as a single-



family lot. There is a concern about setting precedent regarding “spot” zoning
amendments and property lot subdivision.

Old Business: for discussion and possible motion or action.

Noise Complaint: Mayor Potter reviewed the complaints of noise from Camp Sea
Gull from Dave Stewart under Section 93.02 (C) Noises. The letter sent July 13th to
the camp manager stated they had 10 days to abate it. They have not responded to it.
The letter did not have the process for a hearing. Mayor Potter read Section 93.46,
Notice of Hearing. He said the BOC need to determine if conditions exist for a
nuisance and if Mr. Stewart’s complaints are enough of a factor to determine if a
nuisance exists. Commissioner Fowler said one citizen has come forth numerous
times and said there is a problem and a letter has been sent to the camp and have not
received a response from the camp manager. Commissioner Fowler said the board
needs to follow the ordinances. Commissioner Braly asked if the town had decibel
level standards. Mayor Potter said we have no established standards. Commissioner
Fowler moved to have a hearing on the noise complaint against Camp Sea Gull
September 12, 2017. All ayes.

Update on Town projects: Commissioner Braly reported the trees next to the new
addition have been removed. The building construction has halted because the wrong
pitched roof was ordered. This was the contractor’s error. He said he was getting a
certified statement from the manufacturer that the modifications comply with the design
factors of the building. Commissioner Braly said the old road cold patch asphalt has been
removed and prepared for the hot asphalt in a couple weeks. He reported the work is
continuing on Country Club Drive W.

Commissioner Braly suggested asking the community for input for landscaping of the
Town Hall. Town Manager said she would post a notice on the webpage.

New Business

Mr. William Conklin’s Application for Zoning Amendment: Commissioner Fowler
thanked the Planning Board for their recommendation to the Board.of Commissioners
regarding Mr. William Conklin’s request to rezone his lot. Commissioner Braly said the
town would be setting a precedence if we approve this spot zoning request. Commissioner
Fowler moved to accept the Planning Board’s recommendation (the re-zoning application
is inconsistent with the comprehensive plan adopted for Arlington Place and in discord
with officially adopted town plans) and reject the application because the re-zoning
application is not in keeping with the community’s long-range planning for Arlington
Place. All ayes. Mayor Potter asked the Town Manager to write a letter to Mr. Conklin
advising him of the commissioners’ decision.

Brunch Bill: Commissioner Fowler asked Mr. Calcavecchia to speak to the
commissioners. Mr. Calcavecchia asked the commissioner to approve Senate Bill 155
(The Brunch Bill), as mandated by the NC Statutes, for the MBG&CC to serve beer/wine
beginning at 10am on Sundays to open up another revenue opportunity for the MBG&CC.
Commissioner Fowler passed out a copy of an ordinance to all of the commissioners. He
said this ordinance did not require a public hearing, it would allow the sale of beer & wine
before noon on Sundays and would need to be passed by 60% of the commissioners. The



ordinance was read into the record and is made a part hereof by reference. A copy may be
seen at the Town Hall. Commissioner Fowler asked for comments. Mayor Potter said he
had hoped this would not come up for vote during his tenue. He said he opposes the
ordinance that legalizes Senate Bill 155 and said he could not in good conscience support
it on moral, social or personal grounds. Mayor Potter said alcohol was the #1 abused drug
and is associated with child abuse, spousal abuse, auto accidents, assault and murder. He
quoted the percentages from the Washington Post. Mayor Potter said the cost to the tax
payers for alcohol issues is $2 for every $1 collected in the sale of alcohol. He said it takes
the lower moral road and not the higher moral road. The adoption of the ordinance sends a
negative message and sets a poor example for our youth. Mayor Potter said he did not see
the redeeming value and will not support or sign the proposed ordinance if it passes. He
said the Mayor Pro Tem would have to sign it. Commissioner Fowler moved to adopt the
Brunch Bill ordinance and said he would sign it. There was a 3/1 vote. Commissioner
Eber Warren voted against the ordinance. Commissioner Fowler said cities may adopt an
ordinance on the day of introduction if 2/3 of the commissioners vote in the affirmative,
the ordinance passed.

Financial Report — Commissioner Warren reviewed several Budget items that are close
to 100% explaining they are a one-time charge. He also said the Advertising budget may
need to be adjusted in the future. He reported the Town’s current assets as of July 31,
2017 are: First Citizen's Bank Checking $5,815.27; First Citizen's MM $175,968.12; First
South Bank & Savings $217,517.86; North Carolina Management Trust is $202,056.70;
Petty Cash $50.00. The town currently has CDs at First South Bank & Savings ($75,000;
$50,000; $40,249.74; $21,173.62, $20,901.71; $20,174.76). Total assets to the Town are a
total of $849,691.77.

Miscellaneous: Mayor Potter reminded the commissioners that Doug Anderson of
Arlington Place had said last year they would top coat the roads: Y% in 2017 and % in
2018. He asked Town Manager to write a letter to Mr. Anderson requesting a statement
of what has been completed and how much remains to be completed along with an
engineer’s certification there are funds enough remaining in the BB&T letter of credit to.
finish the job. This will be on the September agenda.

Commissioner Warren moved to adjourn. All ayes.

Moo et

Donna Scott, Town Clerk




